
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA 

TUESDAY, May 5, 2015 
 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



   

Town Cou
05/05/20
 

(Times

Mayor D
Vice-Ma
Councilm
Councilm
Councilm

 

1. OPE
 

a. C
 
b. P
 
c. A
 

2. CON
 

a. In
 

b. M
 

c. C
A
2
fo

(Brou

 
 

uncil Agenda 
015 

Tuesda
s established

later than
Loxa

David Brown
ayor Ronald D
man Tom Go
man Ryan Li
man Jim Roc

NING 

Call to Order 

ledge of All

Approval of A

NSENT AGE

nvoice from 

Minutes: 

Consideration
Annual Sprin

0, 2015 To
ollowing me
ught Forwar

TOWN COUN

Town
To

ay, May 
d by Resolut
n 10:30 p.m.
ahatchee Gro

ning (Seat 4) 
D. Jarriel (S

oltzené (Seat
iang (Seat 3)
ckett (Seat 2)

& Roll Call

legiance & In

Agenda 

ENDA  

Goren, Cher

n to ratify d
ng Carnival 
own Counci
eeting.   
rd from 04/2

NCIL MEETIN
P

 
n of Lox
own Co
5, 2015

tion No. 201
., which can
oves Water C

      
Seat 1)
t 5) 
)  
) 

PUBLIC N

l 

nvocation –

rof, Doody &

donation to t
and Silent A
l Meeting, 

21/2015) 

 

G AGENDA, T
Page 1 of 4  

 

xahatch
ouncil M
5 - 7:00
4-08… com

n be extende
Control Dist

   
 

   Town Ma
   Town Cle
   Jim Fleisc
   Town Att

 
NOTICE/AG

 

Mayor Brow

& Ezrol, P.A

the Loxahat
Auction.  Pr
and Counc

TUESDAY, MA

 
hee Grov
Meeting
0 p.m. to
mmencing at
ed by motion
trict, 101 We

anager Willia
erk Janet K. W
chmann, Tow
torney Micha

GENDA 

wning 

A. 

tchee Grove
resentation w
cil chose to 

AY 5, 2015 

ves 

o 10:30
t 7:00 p.m., 
n of the Cou
est “D” Road

am F. Under
Whipple 
wn Planning
ael D. Cirull

es Elementar
was made du

make a de

 p.m. 
and ending 

uncil.) 
d 

rwood, II 

g Consultant
lo, Jr. 

ry School’s 
uring the Jan
ecision duri

Tentative 

Subject to

 

 

no 

PTO 
nuary 
ing a 

 

 Revision 

 
1 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2015 
      Page 2 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/05/2015 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 

4.  PRESENTATIONS – NONE 
 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS   
 
a. Virginia Standish, Chair of the Finance Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC) to 

present the Financial Report endingh April, March Fiscal Year 2015. 
 

6. RESOLUTIONS – NONE 
 
(Clerk Note:  Upon motion and second to adjourn the April 21, 2015 Town Council Meeting at 
10:27 p.m. some of the following Agenda items have been brought forward.) 

 
7. ORDINANCES 

 
a. ORDINANCE 2015-02 ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 / FIRST READING:  
(Council Board Appointment for Planning & Zoning Board  / Local Planning Agency 
(LPA) Members).   

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-011, WHICH ESTABLISHED 
THE TOWN’S PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD, AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE 
2012-02, TO AMEND SECTION 2, SUBSECTION ENTITLED “COMPOSITION AND 
TERM OF OFFICE”, TO CHANGE THE TERM OF OFFICE FOR PLANNING AND 
ZONING BOARD MEMBERS FROM THREE YEAR TERMS TO ONE YEAR TERMS; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (Brought Forward) 

 
 

b. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-03 / FIRST READING: (Prohibiting Disposal of 
Waste Materials)   

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, PROHIBITING THE DISPOSAL OF WASTE MATERIALS, AS 
DEFINED HEREIN, WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; 
FINDING THAT A VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE DEEMED A 
NUISANCE; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (Brought Forward) 

 
 
 
 

 
2 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015

Loxg finance
Cross-Out



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2015 
      Page 3 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/05/2015 
 

8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 
 

a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues 
concerning the Town. 
 

b. PBSO District 15, Loxahatchee Groves Monthly Report March 2015: (On 
File) (Brought Forward) 
 

c. Fire Rescue Response Time for February and March 2015:   (On File) 
(Brought Forward) 

 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS -  
 

a.  Consideration in determining whether forfeiture provisions to remove a Town 
Council Member in question falls within the parameter of the Town Charter. 
(Attachment) 
    (Tabled at April 7, 2015 Town Council Meeting to May 5, 2015 Meeting)  
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Consideration to engage the Town’s engineer to undertake and perform all activities 

necessary to implement the B Road improvements as envisioned through the B Road 
Agreement, the Town’s portion of the B Road improvements and Resolution No. 
2015-08.  (Brought Forward) 

 
 

11. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
a. Vice-Mayor Jarriel 

i. Joint Workshop Town Council and LGWCD Supervisors 
ii. Request for Proposals – Mowing and Hedging  

iii. Discussion of Resolution No. 2014-08 Confirming Town Council 
Meetings dates, time, and place 
 

b. Councilman Rockett 
i. Discussion Relative to public comments at all Committee and Board 

Meetings – Resolution 2013-03A 
ii. Discussion and Recommendations to Solid Waste Monitoring Contract to 

include services, budget, and operations. (Reference Town Management 
Contract) 

 
c. CLOSING COMMENTS 

a. Public  
b. Town Attorney 

 
3 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2015 
      Page 4 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/05/2015 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 
 

d.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for May 19, 2015. 
 
 

 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

 
4 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



I

Con

Atto

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

sent Agenda

 

orney Invoice

 

 

 
5 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
6 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
7 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
8 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
9 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
10 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
11 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
12 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
13 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
14 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Minutes 

March 3, 2015 Town council Meeting 

 
15 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



   

 
 

Town Cou
03/03/20
 

T
(Times

Mayor D
Vice-Ma
Councilm
Councilm
Councilm

1. OPE
 

a.
 

Mayor B
Vice-Ma
were Tow
Whipple.

 
b. P
 
c. A
 

Motion: 
Councilm
 

  T
 

uncil Minutes
015 

Tuesday
s established

later than
Loxa

David Brown
ayor Ronald D
man Tom Go
man Ryan Li
man Jim Roc

NING 

. Call to

Browning cal
ayor Ron Jarr
wn Manager
. 

ledge of All

Approval of A

 Councilm
man Rocket

OWN COUNC

s 

Town
To

y, March
d by Resolut
n 10:30 p.m.
ahatchee Gro

ning (Seat 4) 
D. Jarriel (S

oltzené (Seat
iang (Seat 3)
ckett (Seat 2)

o Order & R

lled the meet
riel, Council
r Bill Under

legiance & In

Agenda 

man Liang 
tt seconded 

CIL MEETING 
P

n of Lox
own Co
h 3, 201
tion No. 201
., which can
oves Water C

      
Seat 1)
t 5) 
) 
) 

M

Roll Call 

ting to order
lmen Tom G
rwood, Tow

nvocation –

made a m
the motion.

 

MINUTES, TU
Page 1 of 6  

 

xahatch
ouncil M
15 - 7:0
4-08… com

n be extende
Control Dist

 
 

   Town Ma
   Town Cle
   Town Pla
   Town Att

 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

r at 7:00 p.m
Goltzené, Ry
wn Attorney 

Mayor Brow

motion to 
.  Upon vote

UESDAY, MA

 
hee Grov
Meeting

0 p.m. t
mmencing at
ed by motion
trict, 101 We

anager Willia
erk Janet K. W
anning Consu
torney Micha

m.  Present w
yan Liang, an

Mike Cirull

wning 

approve th
e, the motio

ARCH 3, 2015 

ves 

to 10:30
t 7:00 p.m., 
n of the Cou
est “D” Road

am F. Under
Whipple 
ultant Jim Fl
ael D. Cirull

were Mayor D
nd Jim Rock
lo, and Tow

he Agenda
on passed 5/

0 p.m.
and ending 

uncil.) 
d 

rwood, II 

leischmann
lo, Jr. 

David Brow
kett.  Also pr
wn Clerk Jan

a, as prese
/0. 

 

no 

wning, 
resent 
net K. 

nted.  

 
16 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2015 
      Page 2 of 6  

 

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/03/2015 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
b. Minutes: - NONE 

 
Motion: Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented.  
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Marge Herzog, 966 A Road, reminded everyone there was a Planning & Zoning Workshop 
concerning the Okeechobee Boulevard Corridor on March 5, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. at the Chamber 
of Commerce Building.  She also expressed concern over a B Road billing on the Town 
Attorney’s invoice. 
 
 Town Attorney Cirullo explained the reference was part of cost recovery and he is dividing the 
cost evenly in order to be fair. 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS – NONE 

 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS   
 

a. Virginia Standish, Chair of the FAAC (Finance Advisory &Audit Committee) to 
present the Financial Report ending January, Fiscal Year 2015. 

 
Virginia Standish provided the Financial Report ending January, Fiscal Year 2015; and noted the 
Trial Balance was not included at this time but would be at a later date.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to accept the Financial Report Ending 
January, Fiscal Year 2015.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the 
motion passed 5/0. 
 
6. ORDINANCES – NONE 

 
7. RESOLUTIONS - NONE 
 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

 
a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues 

concerning the Town. 
 
Town Manager Underwood noted that he had highlighted the newest activity under each 
topic, and then proceeded to review his report. 

 
17 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2015 
      Page 3 of 6  

 

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/03/2015 
 

Council discussed matters of concern. 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. Discussion of RV’s/Trailers – The Town is experiencing a significant influx of 

unauthorized living units throughout the Town. 
 
Town Manager Underwood requested discussion and direction concerning the RV/Trailer 
matter.  He also request targeted enforcement. 
 
Council discussed convening the Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) Committee to 
discuss current codes;  lack of support for anyone dumping sewerage on the ground; the fact that 
they did not mind ruffling feathers; wanting to know where the problem cases were in Town, 
and reminding everyone it took three (3) years to get the manure hauling issues under control; 
giving warnings first, noting the property in question has been cited by the Health Department; 
that the Town needs to cite those non-compliant property owners in order to inform other 
property owners the proper procedures; no trailer parks should be within the Town; that there are 
two (2) properties under investigation, and 1666 C Road has not been in compliance for three (3) 
years; monies owed to the Town for non-compliance. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to bring this item before the Unified Land 
Development Code (ULDC) Committee.   
 
Town Manager Underwood stated the Town would have to reconstitute the ULDC. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo then stated if Council wanted to bring back the ULDC it would have to 
be in the form of a resolution. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo will check in the Town Code to see if provisions to put a lien on a 
property, in reference to garbage, is covered. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion by Council.  
 
Upon vote, the motion failed 2/3, with Mayor Browning, Councilman Liang, and 
Councilman Rockett casting dissenting votes. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to direct Staff to conduct a survey of 
properties to ascertain the degree of the problem.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion. 
 
Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1, with Councilman Goltzené casting the dissenting vote.  
 
 

 
18 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2015 
      Page 4 of 6  

 

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/03/2015 
 

b. Discussion concerning FEMA Flood Plain Mapping.  Approximately 65% or 5,180 
acres and 21 residential structures within the Town, which are located within the 
FEMA proposed flood zone, need to be modified through the designation removal. 
(Town Council requested this item be brought forward to the March 3, 2015, Council 
meeting for further discussion). 

 
Town Manager Underwood explained the two methodologies to be presented to FEMA.  He 
offered additional alternatives. He recommended LIDAR as a study that would be a better 
method to help residents save money. 
 
Mayor Browning noted that there are two-hundred (218) home sites in Loxahatchee Groves, as 
well as, some vacant land.  It is his opinion that he would be willing to pay for the study if it will 
help the residents save spending additional insurance money.  He knows that Wellington had 
this study done and they were taken out of the flood zone and their elevation is lower than 
Loxahatchee Groves. 
 
Town Manger Underwood stated the deadline to file is April 2, 2015.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to advise Staff to proceed with the LIDAR 
study and to notify the two hundred eighteen (218) property owners of the filing deadline.   
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1, with 
Councilman Goltzené casting the dissenting vote. 
 

c. Consideration for an additional $5,000 donation for the Western Communities 
Council (WCC), in support of completing the north extension of State Road 7.  
(Town Council requested this item be brought forward to the March 3, 2015, Council 
meeting for further discussion). 

 
Town Manager Underwood explained the situation with the State Road 7 Extension.  
 
Motion:  Council Liang made a motion to approve a donation to the Western Communities 
Council in support of completing the north extension of State Road 7.  Councilman 
Rockett seconded the motion.  
 
Councilman Rockett provided additional background information on the extension, and noted 
that now the eastern communities are having problems. 
 
Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1 with Councilman Goltzené casting the dissenting vote. 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS - NONE 
 
11. COUNCIL REPORTS - NONE 
 
 

 
19 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2015 
      Page 5 of 6  

 

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/03/2015 
 

 
12. CLOSING COMMENTS 

 
Public 
 

Darrin Swank, 14311 North Road, noted that his family owns a farm in Loxahatchee Groves and 
for the past five (5) years they have been trying to get events approved, and was requesting some 
information.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained that the events at the farm involve fund raising, the application 
comes to the Town in the name of the charity and the applicant is the one who benefits.  There is 
no real definition for agri-tourism, and no way to assist in this type of situation.  It is not like a 
you-pick-em farm, or petting zoo. The charities are hosting and promoting themselves.   The 
charities have to go through a different State agency because they are 501c3, and they do not go 
through the Department of Agriculture as it is not agri-tourism.  The Town has been working 
with them requiring a special event permit but the issue with that is they are only allowed three 
(3) per year.  Mr. Swank, he believes has multiple events scheduled. 

 
Mr. Swank feels that the events are educational, and he feels that they can get the documentation. 

 
Mayor Browning requested Mr. Swank work with Town Manager Underwood to bring this to 
another agenda.  Mayor Browning feels the Swanks provide a great product.  

 
Town Attorney Cirullo noted the topic came to the Town Council meeting because the 501c3 
entities coming to the property wanted to serve alcohol and the Town had to sign off, which is 
separate from the permitting.  The Town is looking for guidance in order to sign off on the 501c3 
events.  
 

Town Attorney 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo commented “Go Gators”, and to recognize Coach Billy Donovan for five 
hundred (500) wins before his 50th birthday. 
 

Town Council Members 
 
Councilman Goltzené thanked everyone for coming and wished all the candidates “good luck”. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel thanked everyone for, be safe going home, and noted there was a good 
turnout at the Candidate’s Forum located at the Chamber of Commerce Building. 
 
Councilman Liang also stated “Go Gators”, thanked everyone for coming, and extended 
congratulations to all the candidates at the various forums. 
 
Councilman Rockett thanked everyone for coming. 

 
20 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2015 
      Page 6 of 6  

 

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/03/2015 
 

 
Mayor Browning thanked everyone for coming, and encouraged them to get out and vote. 
 
13.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned 
the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the May 5, 2015 Town Council Meeting. 
 

 

 
21 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.c. 

Consent Agenda 
Ratification of Donation to the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary 

School’s PTO Annual Spring Carnival and Silent Auction 

 
22 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.a. 

MEETING DATE: 01/20/2015  04/21/2015 
      
PREPARED BY:   Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk  

 
SUBJECT: Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School’s PTO Annual Spring Carnival and 
Silent Auction. 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

 

History:  During the January 20, 2015, Town Council meeting a presentation was made 
requesting Town support for the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School’s PTO Annual 
Spring Carnival and Silent Auction on May 15, 2015.  Council chose to bring back the 
item during the February 3, 2015 meeting for a decision; however, it was overlooked in the 
Agenda preparation. 
 

  

Problem Statement:  The LGES’s PTO will be sponsoring its Annual Spring Carnival and 
Silent Auction as a family activity in order to have fun, as well as, raise money for their 
students. 

Problem Solution:   Authorize a contribution to the LGES’s PTO Annual Spring Carnival and 
Silent Auction. 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 
  

The Town has donated $500.00 in the past years for support. 
 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
    Information/Request letter from the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School PTO. 
 
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

  
This donation will come out of the General Fund/Special Events/Contributions                                                     
(001-511-820-000).  Staff will reduce the transfer to Fund Balance. 

  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  
Request Council consider a donation to the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School’s PTO 
Spring Carnival and Silent Auction.  

 
23 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
24 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 5. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Financials Ending March 31, 2015 
 

 
25 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 Transportation Fund Budget Year-to-Date %

FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 250,858         104,750         41.8%

SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,768         49,941           42.4%

CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                     -                    

TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 412,423         -                       

Total Revenues 781,049       154,691         19.8%

OTHER SERVICES 75                     

TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS (6 CT) MAINT. 10,000           4,082               40.8%

TOWN ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 102,059         21,360             20.9%

DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 93,738           1,951               2.1%

ROADS AND STREETS (5 CT) -                     -                

SPECIAL PROJECTS (6 CT) 60,000           -                   0.0%

148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                     -                

CONSTRUCTION TOWN RDS & STREETS -                     -                

TRANSFER TO CIP FUND 515,252 -                0.0%

Total Expenses 781,049       27,393           3.5%

Excess(deficiency) -                  127,298         
Solid Waste Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS 431,846        361,830           83.8%
DISCOUNT FEES (11,660)         (13,519)            115.9%

Revenues Budget Year-to-Date % SWA RECYCLING INCOME 6,700            2,370               35.4%

AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 217,931            190,383          87.4% INTEREST -                 2,252               0.0%

ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          203,000            96,104            47.3% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 14382 -                   0.0%

COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    103,352            39,668            38.4% Total Revenues 441,268         352,933           80.0%

COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000                5,205              104.1% CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT          7,000             10,793             154.2%

FPL FRANCHISE FEE 185,000            86,449            46.7% PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 4,318             3,476               80.5%

HAULER LICENSE FEE -                        1,525              0.0% POSTAGE & FREIGHT 300                -                       0.0%

PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 5,050                3,262              64.6% SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 414,150         164,293           39.7%

PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT FEES 2,000                3,388              169.4% OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 15,000           3,100               20.7%

STATE REVENUE SHARING 90,689              39,706            43.8%  LEGAL ADVERTISING             500                -                       0.0%

HALF CENT SALES TAX 243,375            104,528          42.9% MANAGEMENT FEES -                     -                       

GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES 4,000                2,101              52.5% Total Expenses 441,268         181,662           41.2%

COST RECOVERY FEES 35,000              45,543.00       130.1% Excess(deficiency) 171,271           

COURT FINES -                        Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund Budget Year-to-Date %

CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 300                   709                 236.3% CONTRIBUTION FROM TRANSPORTATION FUND 555,252       -                   0.0%

INTEREST 200                   (84)                  -42.0% TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 0.0%

OTHER MISC. INCOME 1,000                0.0% Total Revenues 555,252         -                       0.0%

TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE* 1,000,000         

Total Revenues 2,095,897       618,487          29.5% Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                  -                    -                
Surveying Town Roads 90,374           -                   0.0%

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % OGEM Collecting Canal Road -                 -                   0.0%

LEGISLATIVE       42,685              26,213            61.4% Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light 290,944         -                   0.0%

EXECUTIVE 294,177            143,586          48.8% Drainage 25,000           -                   0.0%
FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE 33,670              8,383              24.9% Trails 120,000        -                   0.0%
LEGAL COUNSEL 90,000              33,163            36.8% D Road to Southern Blvd -                -                   0.0%
COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING & ZONING 185,702            120,750          65.0% Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,934          -                   -
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,152,079         529,605          46.0% 555,252        -                      0.0%

LAW ENFORCEMENT 293,584            143,222          48.8% Contract Services Expenditures

PUBLIC WORKS 4,000                736                 18.4% Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date %

Total Expenditures 2,095,897         1,005,658       48.0% Waste Pro 414,150        195,471           47.2%

Excess(deficiency) -                           (387,171)        Palm Beach County Sheriff 283,084         143,222           50.6%
Underwood Management Services Group* 350,355        180,856           51.6%

Goren, Cherof, Doody, Ezrol* 90,000           45,469             50.5%

YTD-Total Funds Expen. Budget Tew & Associates 35,000          12,065             34.5%

Land Research Management* 20,000           32,371             161.9%

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % Engineering Services** 210,000         30,391             14.5%

Total Townwide Budget 3,873,466         1,214,713       31.4% Frank Schiola 25,000          13,950             55.8%

YEE's Corporation 17,100          8,550               50.0%

Loxahatchee Water Control District 184,651 9,195               5.0%
Total Expenses 1,629,340      671,539            41.2%
* Totals include Cost Recovery charges that are in addition to Budget Amount for Vendor

Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected ** Keshavarez & Assoc.; A&B Engineering; Simmon & White also include Cost Recovery charges 
 in GL in transactions

50% of year elapsed)

Town of Loxahatchee Groves
Financial Activity Report as of  March 31, 2015

General Fund Revenue Budget Selected Other Funds

General Fund Revenues

General Fund Expenditures

AD VALOREM TAXES
FPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE
ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX

STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX

PBC\OCC BUS TAX

GEN GOVT 
CHARGES

COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC 
FINES

PLAN ZON PERMIT 
FEES

INTEREST

OTH MISC 
INCOME

TRANS FR SANI 
FUND

 (500,000)  -  500,000  1,000,000

AD VALOREM TAXES
ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX
PBC/OCC BUS TAX

FPL FRAN FEE
HAULER LIC FEE

WATER FRAN FEE
PLAN ZON PERM FEES

STATE REV SHARE
1/2 SALES TAX

GEN GOVT CHARGES
COST RECOV FEES

COURT FINES
CODE ENFORC FINES

INTEREST
OTHER MISC. INCOME
TRANS FR  FUND BAL

General Fund Revenue

Budget YTD

2015-03 FinActRep  
26 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



50% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 8,710                   190,383          -                      217,931                 (27,548)                    87%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 8,710                 190,383        217,931               (27,548)                  87%

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 14,589                 96,104            -                      203,000                 (106,896)                  47%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 7,922                   39,668            -                      103,352                 (63,684)                    38%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 200                      5,205              -                      5,000                     205                           104%

Local Taxes Subtotal 22,712               140,976        -                    311,352               (170,376)                45%

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 29,880                 86,449            -                      185,000                 (98,551)                    47%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee 505                      1,525              -                      -                         1,525                        NA
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 658                      3,262              -                      5,050                     (1,788)                       65%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 265                      3,388              -                      2,000                     1,388                        169%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 31,309               94,624          -                    192,050               (97,426)                  49%

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,618                   39,706            -                      90,689                   (50,983)                    44%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 20,759                 104,528          -                      243,375                 (138,847)                  43%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 27,377               144,234        334,064               (189,830)                43%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 495                      2,101              -                      4,000                     (1,900)                       53%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 10,160                 45,543            -                      35,000                   10,543                      130%

Charges for Services Subtotal 10,655               47,643          -                    39,000                 8,643                      122%

001-351-100-000 Court Fines -                       -                  -                    -                         -                            
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       709                 -                      300                        409                           236%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal -                     709               -                    300                      409                         236%

001-361-100-000 Interest (109)                     (84)                  -                      200                        (284)                          -42%
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       -                  -                      1,000                     (1,000)                       0%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal (109)                   (84)                -                    1,200                   (1,284)                     -7%

001-381-305-000 Transfer from CIP Fund -                     -                -                    1,000,000            (1,000,000)             0%
001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance* -                       -                  -                      -                         -                            0%

Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                     -                1,000,000            -                          0%

Grand Total Revenue 100,653             618,487        -                    2,095,897            (1,659,475)             30%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MARCH 31, 2015

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC

Page 1 of 6
Corrected: 4/29/2015

 
27 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



50% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       -                  -                      650                        650                           0%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       -                  -                      3,000                     3,000                        0%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       1,260              -                      1,500                     240                           84%
001-511-499-000 Other Current Charges - Council Reimbursement 2,500                   17,500            -                      30,000                   12,500                      58%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       -                  -                      1,000                     1,000                        0%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies -                       -                  -                      300                        300                           0%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       -                  -                      300                        300                           0%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       1,635              -                      1,935                     300                           85%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions 5,000                   5,818              -                      4,000                     (1,818)                       145%

Legislative Total 7,500                 26,213          -                    42,685                 16,472                    61%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 22,471                 134,826          -                      269,653                 134,827                    50%
001-512-400-000 Travel 335                      431                 -                      1,500                     1,069                        29%
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 34                        215                 -                      1,000                     785                           21%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                  -                      500                        500                           0%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       2                     -                      944                        942                           0%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense 2,860                   3,846              -                      8,010                     4,164                        48%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 975                      4,255              -                      12,000                   7,745                        35%
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       11                   -                      570                        559                           2%

Executive Total 26,676               143,586        294,177               150,591                  49%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       2,500              -                      18,000                   15,500                      14%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                  -                      1,751                     1,751                        0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                  -                      2,000                     2,000                        0%
001-513-491-000 Computer Services -                       5,883              -                      11,919                   6,036                        49%

Financial & Administrative Total -                     8,383            33,670                 25,287                    25%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 4,426                   33,163            -                      90,000                   56,837                      37%
Legal Total 4,426                 33,163          90,000                 56,837                    37%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MARCH 31, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

UMSG,LLC

Page 2 of 6
Corrected: 4/29/2015

 
28 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



50% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 995                      15,102.50$     -                      40,000                   24,898                      38%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 6,725                   40,351.02$     -                      80,702                   40,351                      50%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 875                      3,300.00$       -                      20,000                   16,700                      17%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 12,835                 56,696.03$     -                      35,000                   (21,696)                    162%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW -                       5,300.80$       -                      10,000                   4,699                        53%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 21,430               120,750        185,702               64,952                    65%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate -                       1,980              -                      16,000                   14,020                      12%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 28                        12,065            -                      38,000                   25,935                      32%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 464                      2,647              -                      6,100                     3,453                        43%
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 1,832                   12,278            -                      34,783                   22,505                      35%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       2,740              -                      18,000                   15,260                      15%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 1,455                   3,255              -                      3,600                     345                           90%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair 74                        896                 -                      5,500                     4,604                        16%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 313                      1,952              -                      7,292                     5,340                        27%
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                  -                      5,280                     5,280                        0%
001-519-610-000 Land Acquisition 25,322                 26,972            -                         (26,972)                    NA
001-519-620-000 Chamber of Commerce Property 424,609               464,609          -                         (464,609)                  NA
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       210                 -                      2,000                     1,790                        11%
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                  -                      15,524                   15,524                      0%
001-519-998-000 Transfer To Fund Balance -                       -                  -                      1,000,000              1,000,000                 0%

Other Governmental Services Total 454,097             529,605        152,079               (377,526)                348%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 23,590                 143,222          -                      283,084                 139,862                    51%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       -                  -                      10,500                   10,500                      0%

Law Enforcement Total 23,590               143,222        293,584               150,362                  49%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                  -                      -                         -                            
001-539-340-000 Professional Services -                       736                 -                      4,000                     3,264                        18%

Public Works Total -                     736               4,000                   3,264                      18%

Grand Total Expenditure 537,719             1,005,660     -                    2,095,897            931,289                  48%

Net Revenue (437,066)            (387,173)       2,095,897              

AS OF MARCH 31, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

UMSG,LLC

Page 3 of 6
Corrected: 4/29/2015

 
29 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



50% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 6 cent) 21,999                 104,750          -                      250,858                 146,108                    42%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 5 cent) 10,699                 49,941            -                      117,768                 67,827                      42%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                  -                      412,423                 412,423                    0%

Total Revenue 32,697               154,691        781,049               626,358                  20%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-539-340-000 Other Services -                       75                   
101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       4,082              -                      10,000                   5,918                        41%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 315                      21,675            -                      102,059                 80,384                      21%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       1,951              -                      93,738                   91,787                      2%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                  -                      60,000                   60,000                      0%
101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                  -                      515,252                 515,252                    0%

Total Expenditure 315                    27,782          -                    781,049               753,267                  4%

Net Revenue 32,382               126,909        -                       

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF MARCH 31, 2015

UMSG,LLC

Page 4 of 6
Corrected: 4/29/2015

 
30 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



50% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transportation Fund -                       -                  -                      555,252                 (555,252)                  0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                  -                      1,000,000              (1,000,000)               0%

Total Revenue -                     -                -                    1,555,252            (1,555,252)             0%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Roads -                       -                  -                      90,374                   90,374                      0%
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       -                  -                      290,944                 290,944                    0%
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects -                       -                  -                      25,000                   25,000                      0%
305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                  -                      120,000                 120,000                    0%
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD -                       -                  -                      28,934                   28,934                      0%
305-581-001-000 Interfund Transfer Out To GF -                     -                -                    1,000,000            1,000,000               0%

Total Expenditure -                     -                -                    1,555,252            1,555,252               0%

Net Revenue -                     -                -                       

AS OF MARCH 31, 2015

Capital Improvement Program
Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

UMSG,LLC

Page 5 of 6
Corrected: 4/29/2015

 
31 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



50% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 15,958                 361,830          -                      431,846                 70,016                      84%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees (210)                     (13,519)           -                      (11,660)                  1,859                        116%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income 688                      2,370              -                      6,700                     4,330                        35%
405-361-100-000 Interest -                       2,252              -                      -                         (2,252)                       NA
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                  -                      14,382                   14,382                      0%

Total Revenue 16,436               352,933        -                    441,268               88,335                    80%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over 1,811                   10,763            -                      7,000                     (3,763)                       154%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 157                      3,476              -                      4,318                     842                           80%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       -                  -                      300                        300                           0%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 33,813                 164,293          -                      414,150                 249,857                    40%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service 1,600                   3,100              -                      15,000                   11,900                      21%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                  -                      500                        500                           0%

Total Expenditure 37,381               181,632        -                    441,268               259,637                  41%

Net Revenue (20,945)              171,301        -                       

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MARCH 31, 2015

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

Note:  YTD Fines credited to Service Provider invoicing - $8800.00

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

UMSG,LLC

Page 6 of 6
Corrected: 4/29/2015

 
32 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a. 

ORDINANCES 

2015-01 First Reading 

Appointment for Planning & Zoning Board/Local Planning Agenda 
Members 

 

 

 
 

 
33 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.a. 
MEETING DATE: 04/21/2015 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  Ordinance on First Reading Amending Ordinance 2011-011, Establishing The 
Town’s Planning And Zoning Board 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: The Town Council needs to synchronize the appointments of the Town’s 
boards and committees in order that all membership is renewed annually.  .  
 

Problem Solution:  Town Council must modify the length of term for individuals appointed to 
the planning and zoning board.   
 

At the April 7, 2015, meeting of the Town Council, the Council was advised that it is necessary 
to modify the ordinance establishing the Planning and Zoning Board. 
 

 

2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  
 Town Attorney and staff prepare amendments to the Planning and Zoning Board enabling legislation. 
 

 

3.  ATTACHMENTS  
 

 
Ordinance No. 2015-02 
Current Board Members 
 

 

4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 

 N/A      
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
 A motion adopting Ordinance  2015-02 on first reading. 

 
34 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 
 

{00069435.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-
011, WHICH ESTABLISHED THE TOWN’S PLANNING AND ZONING 
BOARD, AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE 2012-02, TO AMEND 
SECTION 2, SUBSECTION ENTITLED “COMPOSITION AND TERM 
OF OFFICE”, TO CHANGE THE TERM OF OFFICE FOR PLANNING 
AND ZONING BOARD MEMBERS FROM THREE YEAR TERMS TO 
ONE YEAR TERMS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, in 2011, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves adopted 

Ordinance 2011-011 which established the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board; and,  

WHEREAS, in 2012, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2012-02, which amended 

Ordinance 2011-011 to allow alternate members of the Planning and Zoning Board to participate 

in any matter coming before the Board at a meeting at which the alternate member attends; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it is in the best interest of the Town to change the 

terms of office for members of the Planning and Zoning Board from three (3) year terms to one 

(1) year terms. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

 Section 1:  That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance.   

 
35 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 
 

{00069435.1 1574-0702400 }  
Strike-thru represents deleted text, and underline represents added text. 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 

Section 2:  The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby amends 

Ordinance 2011-011, as amended by Ordinance 2012-02, to amend the Section entitled 

“Composition and term of office,” as follows:  

. . .  

Sec.      - Composition and term of office. 
 
(1) The Planning and Zoning Board shall be composed of five (5)  

members, and two (2) alternate members placed in office in accordance with the 
following procedure:  

 
(a) Each member of the Town Council, following his or her election or 

re-election to office, shall nominate a qualified citizen for 
appointment to the Planning and Zoning Board by the Town 
Council, to serve one (1) year termsa term of three (3) years. 

(b) Two (2) alternative members, designated as Alternate No. 1 and 
Alternate No. 2, shall be appointed by the Town Council each year 
to serve one (1) year terms.  Alternate members may participate in 
all matters that come before the Board at meetings at which they 
attend.  However, alternate members may only vote  as members 
of the Board, in their designated order, whenever any regular 
member of the Board is absent. 

 
. . .  
 

Section 3: Conflicts.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions in conflict herewith, be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict.   

Section 4:  Severability.  If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
36 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 
 

{00069435.1 1574-0702400 }  
Strike-thru represents deleted text, and underline represents added text. 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 Section 5:  Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

Section 6:  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2015. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2015.       
              

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  
 

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet Whipple, Town Clerk    Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 

 
37 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
Updated 4/16/2015  Page 1 of 1 
 
C:\Users\susan E\Dropbox (Loxahatchee Groves)\Town Docs\CLERK\COUNCIL, BOARDS, COMMITTEES\TOWN 
COUNCIL\Agendas\2015\04-21-2015\Ordinances\Ordinance No 2015-02 P&Z\2014-2015 PZ Membership List.docx  (rev 10/01/2014) 

 
 

 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
 2014-2015 

 
Established July 19, 2011 by Ordinance 2011-011, amended by Ordinance 2012-02 

Meets the 2nd Thursday of Each Month 
Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce – West Office 

13901 Southern Blvd. 
Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

    
Dennis Lipp, Chair 
13402 North Road            596-6357 cell 
d_lipp@comcast.net         793-6013 home 
Seat 4 (Mayor Browning) Appointed 8/2/11   
Appointed as Chair 4/12/12 
 
Robin Crawford, Vice Chair   
3057 E Road       (954) 647-0009 
robin@crawfordtracey.com 
Seat 2 (Jim Rockett) Appointed 8/2/11   
Appointed as Vice Chair 4/12/12 
 
Lawrence Corning         818-9993  
2834 E Road  
lhc.pandz@yahoo.com  
Seat 5 (Tom Goltzené) Appointed 8/2/11   
 
Grace Joyce 
3886 147th Ave. N.           822-1552 (work) 
gjoyce@wpb.org /1cds@comcast.net      371-3584 (cell) 
Seat 1 (Ron Jarriel) Appointed 8/2/11 
 
Veronica Close,  
12963 Raymond Drive           790-1982 
closev_lg@hotmail.com     561-385-6692 
Seat 3 (Ryan Liang) Appointed as a Regular 02/03/2015 
Town Council Re-Appointed 11-20-2012 for 1 yr. term 
Town Council Appointed 8/2/11 
 
Alternate Member #1 - VACANT 
 
Alternate Member #2 - VACANT 

 
38 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015

mailto:d_lipp@comcast.net
mailto:robin@crawfordtracey.com
mailto:lhc.pandz@yahoo.com
mailto:gjoyce@wpb.org
mailto:/1cds@comcast.net
mailto:closev_lg@hotmail.com


Pro

I

OR

2015‐0

ohibiting Disp

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.b. 

RDINANCES 

02 First Readi

posal of Wast

 

 

ng 

te Materials

 
39 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.b. 
MEETING DATE: 04/21/2015 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 2015-03 on First Reading, Prohibiting the disposal of waste 
materials within the Town 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: The Town Council and citizens expressed the need for the cessation of 
dumping waste materials on property within the Town.  
 

Problem Solution:  Create an ordinance that prohibits dumping or disposing of waste materials 
within the Town and provide for law enforcement to abate the matter and penalties.    
 

At the April 7, 2015, meeting of the Town Council, the Council unanimously adopted a motion 
instructing staff under work authorization WA 2015-02, to prepare legislation that would 
prohibit the dumping of waste materials on land within the Loxahatchee Groves town limits.     
 

 

2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

Town staff has worked with the Town attorney to research, draft, revise, and prepare for 
Council action and ordinance to prohibit waste materials from being deposited within the Town 
boundaries. 
 
The Town Council should understand the legislation attached for approval is the Town’s first 
line of defense in halting further dumping within the Town.  This legislation becomes effective 
after its second reading on May 5, 2015.  Further action may be required to incorporate the 
proposed legislation with the Town’s unified land development code. 
 

 

3.  ATTACHMENTS  
 

 
Ordinance No. 2015-03 
Section 62-701.200 Definitions F.A.C. 

 

4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 

 N/A      
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
 A motion adopting Ordinance  No. 2015-03 on first reading. 

 
40 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



{00069201.2 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-03 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, PROHIBITING THE 
DISPOSAL OF WASTE MATERIALS, AS DEFINED HEREIN, 
WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; 
FINDING THAT A VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 
BE DEEMED A NUISANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has heard concerns from Town Management and the public 

relating to abuses by commercial haulers and property owners for depositing or disposal of Waste 

Materials are defined herein, referencing state statute and regulatory rule definitions, on properties 

within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council continues to be concerned with quality of life, including 

water quality within the drainage canals in the Town, and has heard from residents about concerns 

from continued abuse of depositing and disposal of Waste Materials within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the depositing and disposal of Waste Materials is a public nuisance, attracting 

flies and emanating odors to nearby properties; and,  

 WHEREAS, Florida statutes and administrative rules contain definitions of several types of 

waste materials, the disposal of which the Town Council deems to be nuisances, and finds it in the 

best interest of the Town to incorporate and use such definitions in order to ensure consistency with 

Florida law that prohibits the use by municipalities of definitions relating to solid waste that are 

inconsistent with statutory definitions; and,   

 

 
41 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

{00069201.2 1574-0702400 } 2 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that prohibiting the disposal of Waste Materials is 

necessary to prevent illegal dumping and pollution, and avoid the creation of public nuisances 

within the Town; and,   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.      

 Section 2. Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(a) Waste Materials: Ash Residue, Biomedical Waste, Biological Waste, Class I Waste, 

Class III Waste, Commercial Solid Waste, Construction and Demolition Debris, 

Contaminated Soil, Garbage, Hazardous Waste, Household Waste, Industrial byproducts, 

Industrial Solid Waste, Leachate, Liquid Waste, Oily Waste, Recovered Materials, 

Recyclable Materials, Sludge, Solid Waste, Special Wastes, White Goods and Yard 

Trash, all as defined in §403.703, Florida Statutes, and Rule 62-701.200, Florida 

Administrative Code, incorporated herein and attached hereto as Composite Exhibit “A”.  

The definitions in this Ordinance shall be deemed amended upon the amendment of 

§403.703, Florida Statutes, and Rule 62-701.200, Florida Administrative Code. 

(b) Disposal: The discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling, leaking, or placing of any 

waste material into or upon any land or water so that such waste materials or any 

constituent thereof may enter other lands or be emitted into the air or discharged into any 

waters, including groundwaters, or otherwise enter the environment. 

 
42 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

{00069201.2 1574-0702400 } 3 
 

(c) Public Nuisance:  the unreasonable, unwarranted and/or unlawful activity and/or use of 

property, which causes inconvenience or damage to others, either to individuals and/or to 

the general public. 

 Section 3. Prohibition of Depositing or Disposing of Waste Materials.  The 

disposal of Waste Material, including without limitation, receiving, spreading or storing such 

Waste Material on Property, within the corporate limits of the Town is prohibited. 

 Section 4. Nuisance.  A violation of this ordinance is deemed by the Town Council 

to be a public nuisance. 

 Section 5. Violation of State Laws.  The Town Council specifically finds that a 

violation of this ordinance presents a public nuisance for purposes of enforcement of Section 

403.413, Florida Statutes, and law enforcement officers charged with the enforcement of state 

and local laws within the Town shall strictly enforce Section 403.413, Florida Statutes.    

 Section 6. Enforcement.  This ordinance shall be enforced as follows: 

(a) Law enforcement officers are authorized to enforce this ordinance.   

(b) In addition to penalties resulting from a violation of Section 403.413, Florida 

Statutes, the fines for violations of this ordinance by drivers of vehicles of Waste Materials 

disposed in violation of this Ordinance shall be: 

First Offense Second Offense Third Offense All Additional 
Offenses 

$100 $250 $400 $500 

 
(c) The Town may also file charges for any offense in a court with jurisdiction, in 

which case the penalty shall be a fine of $500, imprisonment not to exceed sixty (60) days, or 

both, for each violation of this ordinance.  The Town shall recover its costs of prosecution, 

 
43 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

{00069201.2 1574-0702400 } 4 
 

including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs for law enforcement and Town 

employees. 

(d) To the extent authorized by law, the Town Administration is authorized to use the 

Town’s Code Enforcement process to enforce violations of this ordinance where a law 

enforcement officer has not otherwise issued violations of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or 

of this ordinance.  In such instances, the fine shall be the maximum permitted by law.  The Town 

shall recover its costs of prosecution, including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs 

for law enforcement and Town employees. 

(e) Each day a violation remains constitutes a separate violation of this ordinance. 

(f) The Town Manager shall report any violation of this ordinance to state, county, 

and other regulatory agencies which he or she deems appropriate and request review by such 

agencies for any additional violations of local, state or federal laws and regulations.     

 Section 7. Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All Ordinances or part of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are in the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 8. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 Section 9. Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

 
44 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

{00069201.2 1574-0702400 } 5 
 

 Section 10. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage and adoption.  

  

 
45 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

{00069201.2 1574-0702400 } 6 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2015. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2015.       
              

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  

 
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 

 
46 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
 

{00069201.2 1574-0702400 } 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

§403.703, Florida Statutes (2014) 
Rule 62-701.200, Florida Administrative Code 

 
47 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
48 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
49 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
50 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
51 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
52 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
53 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
54 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
55 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
56 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
57 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
58 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
59 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
60 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
61 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a.b.c. 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

AIR 
PBSO Report 

Fire Rescue Report 

 
62 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.a. 

MEETING DATE: 04/21/2015 
 

 
 
 

PREPARED BY: William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Manager Update 
 
1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

Problem Statement:  The Town Council requests updates on activities and issues. 
 

Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with an update. 
 

The Council requested they be updated on the various issues facing the Town, it is noted that 
items in this category be provided as part of a written report. 

 

 
 

2.CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 

• Trails: At the Town Council meeting of 11/18/2014, the Council approved the Town 
drafted ILA for funding the trails, maintenance easements, and roads.  The ILA was 
transmitted to the LGWCD on Wednesday, 11/19/2014. 
o Subsequent to the ILA transmittal, the Town Attorney, and staff met with the 

LGWCD attorney and administrator on Friday, 11/21/2014, at the office of the 
District’s attorney. 

o Substantial progress was made.  The Town attorney provided the District’s attorney 
with a summary of the discussion points to be incorporated within a jointly 
prepared ILA. 

o On or about December 3, the Town received comments from the attorney for the 
LGWCD. 

O On December 9, the Town Attorney and I were reviewing the points of the 
agreement. 

o This working group will labor to complete the agreement and present to the 
respective legislative boards as soon as practical. 

o As of December 30, 2014, the Town is on hold pending a response from LGWCD. 
o Recent discussion on January 13, 2015 with the Administrator indicates the Town 

should be reviewing a response soon. 
o On January 23, 2015, the Town received an ILA from the LGWCD without first 

agreeing to the initial discussion positions tentatively agreed upon at the November 
21, 2014, meeting.  We requested the LGWCD provide a document which can be 
edited and changes tracked instead of the document provided which would the Town 
can use instead of having the Town Attorney re-type the agreement at additional cost. 

o Subsequent to receipt and request, on January 23, 2015, the Town was informed the 
LGWCD was incorporating a few more tweaks to the agreement.  Upon completion, 
they will send the document to the Town.  

63 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



o February 3, 2915, the Town received another agreement from the LGWCD, without 
confirmation regarding the original agreed upon discussion points outlined at the 
11/21/2014 meeting between the Town and district staff.  Attorney and staff did not 
have sufficient time to review the document before the district meeting on 2/10/2015. 

o February 26, 2015, the Town attorney and this office discussed the ILA submitted by 
the LGWCD.  Further, The Town Attorney has requested a date and time to discuss the 
ILA during the week of the March 2nd.  As of this writing, we have not received a 
response from the district.  

o March 19, 2015, the Town Attorney and I met with Mary Viator and Frank Palen in 
their offices to review the ILA agreements.  New issues were submitted for Town 
compliance by the district’s attorney.  The new items require the Town to prepare 
construction standards for public trails upon the district’s easements, if applicable.  
Additionally, it appears that before any trails can be used by the citizens, trail 
construction standards must be adopted, implemented, and fences are or may be 
required.  These have not been mentioned at any prior discussion regarding the ILA. 
Under this new requirement: 

 The Town should first prepare a set of standards that will be incorporated 
within the agreement.   

 Further, we learned that not all maintenance easements would be treated as 
public trails.  The trail network concept must be determined before this office 
could recommend an ILA be agreed upon.  

The meeting concluded with the following actions: 
o District attorney and staff will review the base ILA agreement and offer 

potential changes. 
o Town attorney and staff will review the “permit” document and offer 

potential changes. 
o April 14, 2015, this office has not had an opportunity to complete the review of the 

base ILA nor begin the work on reconstructing the Permit pursuant to the district’s 
request. 

 
• Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town for 

the funding of the traffic light at Okeechobee Boulevard and D Road. 
o A discussion with Minto’s attorney on December 29, 2014, indicated Palm Beach County 

would agree for the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement which may 
exclude the County. 

o No activity on this item as of January 14, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of January 26, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of February 10, 2015. 
o This office has received communication and we are trying to establish a date and time 

during the week of March 9th.   
o No activity on this item as of April 1, 2015. 
o April 15, 2015 this office met with representatives from Minto.  Discussion points were 

covered regarding the proposed funding of the traffic control appurtenances for D Road 
and Okeechobee.  Staff will review the information and report progress at the June 16 
Town Council meeting.  

 
• Building:  Staff had a meeting with the Day property representative to preliminary discuss the 

prospective site plan for the property on Tuesday, December 9.  The meeting was to review site 
plan requirements and process 
o We reviewed the site plan submission requirements 
o Discussed the site plan specifically 

 addressing conditions of approval  
64 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 perimeter landscaping buffer requirements 
 horse trail potential 

o Timing of submittal and hearings 
 PBC manages traffic related issues and may need to be at meetings 
 LGWCD to affirm positive outfall for drainage 
 Interconnection to westerly property discussion 
 Set RETGAC meeting for January 2015 
 P&Z meeting for January 2015 
 About March present to Town Council. 

o No Activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting. 
o On 1/12/2015, staff and Mr. Lipp, met with representatives reviewing Rural Vista  

guidelines assisting the representatives determine the guidelines. 
o This item is due to be presented to the P&Z and RETGAC committees jointly at their 

February 19, 2015, meeting. 
o The February 19th P&Z and RETGAC joint meeting placed additional conditions upon 

the site plan such as an equestrian trail on the north boundary of the property from east to 
west and the Town’s engineer provide a review of the conclusions of the traffic study 
and acceptance. 

o The Town Attorney has received comments regarding the requested trail easement and 
will be providing a response soon.   

 
Building: FEMA Flood Zone Mapping: Town Council authorized staff and the Town’s 
engineer, Keshavarz & Associates, at its March3, 2015, Council meeting to work and remove 
as many homes as possible from the flood plain.  The Council authorized a project to assist 
218 homeowners or about 1/3 of the population avoid the costly expense of flood insurance 
based on FEMA’s placing the homes in the flood plain.  The results of the Town’s work in 
this matter reduced by 75% the number of home located within the flood plain.  The attached 
report specifically addresses the project and process employed to reach such a favorable 
result. 

 April 15, 2015 report from Keshavarz & Associates 

 

 Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, and 
Ken Mudd, Resource Professional IV, representing South Florida Water Management District 
(SFWMD) in reference to a permit the SFWMD issued in 1982 for a road and swale 
improvement on 43rd.  As I understand the purpose of the meeting, SFWMD was looking to 
determine whether or not the Town would assist them in correcting a deficiency in the road 
and swale drainage system on the road.  The Town will be contacted in the future regarding the 
next step to be taken to correct the problem. 
o No activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting. 
o No activity from SFWMD representative as of 1/14/2015. 
o This office received communication from SFWMD regarding their internal work to plan 

their path forward on January 15, 2015.  Upon completing their planning effort, they 
will be in touch with staff. 

o No activity since 1/15/2015 to 2/11/1015. 
o February 23, 2015, Ms. Hendrichsen Sandoval stated that this office will be notified in 

advance of a letter will be drafted informing residents of a meeting to discuss the matter. 
o No activity as of April 1, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of April 14, 2015. 

 
  

65 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



• Roads:  Speed hump removal is being investigated as to the methodology and cost of eliminating 
those traffic control devices to meet the Town’s distance specifications. 

o Due to time constraints, this office has been unable to get a response from potential 
vendors; however, the  Town consultant believed the cost to be equal or greater than the 
$700 cost per speed hump to install.  

 

 Building:  Update of work to prepare the Chamber building to become the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves Town Hall 

 
o In an effort to provide as smooth a transition as possible to the new Town Hall, this 

office has begun preliminary work to initiate services for the location such as: 
 

 Establish FPL account 
 Establish water and sewer account with Palm Beach County 
 Establish solid waste removal 
 Establish an account with Suncom, State of Florida telecommunications 
 Transfer ATT lines while Suncom gets established 
 Transfer Comcast cable 
 Prepare building with interior painting 
 Prepare for a moving company to relocate offices 
 Approval of Termination Notice to YEE’s Corporation – Lease Agreement for 

Town offices 
o Staff continues to work on all necessary items for the transition. 
o Accounts have been established with FPL and PBC Utilities and painting commenced 

and we are trying to move into Town Hall during the week of April 20th.  Efforts, 
however, are hampered due to the Chamber not leaving anything for the Town’s use.  

 
 Unauthorized living structures:  Pursuant to Town Council instruction, staff initiated action 

against 1666 C Road for providing for the operations of excess living structures on the property 
which impacts the Town, at a minimum, through solid waste removal without appropriate 
payment for the services. 

 

o Additionally, staff has proceeded with various actions on other properties initiated by 
individuals. 

o Staff began the survey and will finish and work to prepare a report for either the April 
21, or May 5, 2015, agenda. 

 

3. ATTACHMENTS 
 

 April 15, 2015 report from Keshavarz & Associates 
 

4. FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Not applicable. 
 
5. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Motion to receive and file report. 

 
66 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com  

 

 

KESHAVARZ  &&&& ASSOCIATES 
 Civil Engineers – Land Surveyors 

 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves FEMA FIRM Appeal Process 

April 15th, 2015 

 

Executive Summary: 

• 162 Residential Structures have been removed from flood zone AE (high risk) as a result 

of the remapping process. 

• The scope of the project was modified during the initial stages, currently providing a 

savings to the Town of $66,000. 

• We recommend for the Town to join Palm Beach County in acquiring LiDAR data during 

fall of this year to further appeal / amend the FEMA maps. The Town will have the 

opportunity to acquire LiDAR data at that time for a significant savings.   

 

On March 3, 2015, the Town Council was presented a proposal for civil engineering and survey 

related services with the goal to assist the Town in pursuing an appeal process though FEMA in 

order to remove as many houses as possible from the proposed flood zone. The deadline to 

submit an appeal to FEMA with scientific supporting data was April 2, 2015. At the time, there 

were two different options available to the Town to appeal the FEMA FIRM process: 

1. Structure Specific Survey Acquisition and remapping of the preliminary FIRMs 
Project Cost: $109,000 

 

2. Town-wide LiDAR data, modeling and remapping of the preliminary FIRMs 

Project Cost: $105,000 - $120,000  
 

The Town authorized us to proceed with the second option of acquiring town-wide LiDAR data 

to use as the basis of re-mapping the preliminary FIRMs. 

 
During the early stages of the town-wide LiDAR acquisition a third option was discovered and 

ultimately used for the FEMA appeal process: 

 

3. New FEMA DEM: remapping of the preliminary FIRMs based upon filtering and editing 
recently available digital elevation model (DEM) released by FEMA on February 28th, 

2015.  

Project Cost: $54,000 - $72,000  

 

 
67 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com  

 

Background: 

While we were in the process of setting up the flight and associated survey preparation, a third 

option became available. The City of Greenacres acquired LiDAR data that was given to FEMA 

to supplement the currently available Lidar information. FEMA incorporated the new LiDAR 
data and revised the digital elevation model (DEM) used in the mapping process.  On February 

28, 2015, FEMA released the new DEM to Palm Beach County.   

 

On the afternoon of March 5th, we were notified of the newly available DEM.  We immediately 
downloaded the data, begun a review process of it to determine if it would be beneficial for the 

Town and notified the Town Manager of the newly available DEM. On the morning of March 

6th, we completed our review of the new DEM and determined that it would be significantly 

beneficial for the Town.   
 

Based upon discussions with the Town Manager on Friday March 6th we decided to cancel the 

scheduled flight and utilize the new DEM in lieu of acquiring Town-wide LiDAR data based 

upon the following reasons: 
 

• Based upon our review of the new DEM; filtering and remapping the flood zones on the 
new DEM would reduce the number of structures by 50%. 

• There is no guarantee that LiDAR acquired by the Town would yield a reduction of any 
more structures in the floodplain. 

• FEMA could require the Town to revise the hydrological model for the basin. 

• There would be significant cost saving to the Town by not acquiring the LiDAR data. 

• Palm Beach County (PBC) will be initiating a large scale LiDAR acquisition process, 

after the FEMA appeal deadline, where all municipalities are invited to share in the cost 
savings of one larger scale process, without a 30 day deadline. The information gathered 

during this effort will be used by PBC to submit for an amendment to the proposed flood 

mapping.  The Town can also participate in that countywide effort. 

 

Project Revisions: 

Due to the dynamic changes that occurred early on in the project, our scope of services were 

adjusted accordingly and the followings steps occurred: 

 
1. Acquired and analyzed newly available DEM; 

2. Mapped flood zones AE (high risk) and X based upon the DEM with ArcGIS and filtered 

flood zones using engineering judgement to remove irregularities that erroneously 

included structures within flood zone AE; 
3. Field verified elevations to confirm the flood zone; 

4. Removed areas from the flood zone that were inaccurately represented within the DEM;    

5. Authored a letter of appeal to FEMA on behalf of the Town and provided the results of 

the remapping efforts to FEMA in an acceptable format. FEMA deadline of April 2nd was 
met; 

6. Authored a summary of results and project revisions. 

 
  

 
68 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



711 N Dixie Highway, Suite 201 • West Palm Beach, FL  33401 •  561-689-8600 • fax 561-689-7476 • www.keshavarz.com  

 

Results: 

Upon completion of our analysis and remapping efforts, a total of 162 residential structures have 

been removed from flood zone AE (high risk), 59 habitable structures (residential and non-
residential) remain.      

 

As of this filing, the savings to the Town is $66,000.  However, we may need to address future 

comments from FEMA which could reduce the savings to $49,000. 

 
69 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



District 15 Loxahatchee Groves 

Monthly Report:  March 2015 

       
   
Calls for Service  
(self-generated) 

Monthly 

Business/Residence Checks 48 
Traffic Stops 33 
Dispatched calls 211 
Total 292 

Traffic Monthly 
Warnings 13 

Citations 20 

Totals 33 

Summary: During the month, D15 deputies handled (292) calls for service.  28% of calls for 
service were self-generated.  
 
Part I Crimes Case #’s  Monthly 
Murder 0 
Sexual Assault 0 
Robbery 0 
Aggravated Assault 2 
Burglary 2 
Theft 0 
Motor Vehicle Theft 1 
Arson 0 
Total 5 
   

Town of Loxahatchee Groves CMV Enforcement Permit / March 2015 

0 Citations 
9 Warnings 
0 FIR / Field Interview Reports 
5 Commercial Vehicle Inspections / 1 Placed Out of Service 

      1 Arrests (Town of Loxahatchee Groves Ordinance 2014-03) 
 

 
70 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Summary:  

• 02/15/15- Fatal Automobile accident at 13771 Okeechobee Blvd between F & E roads.  
The vehicle left the roadway and crashed into a mailbox before striking a utility pole, the 
72 year old driver was taken to St. Mary’s Medical Center via Trauma Hawk helicopter.  
He died of his injuries on 03/26/15.  Accident is still under investigation by the PBSO 
Vehicle Homicide Investigations unit. 

• Boonies Bar & Grill at 14555 Southern Blvd / State of FL Alcohol, Beverage, & Tobacco 
Operation.  03/31/15, Assisted ABT with a successful completion.    

• Boonies Bar & Grill at 14555 Southern Blvd / Intoxicated woman was arrested for 
battery on an officer, resisting arrest, and trespassing.  
 

 

  

 
71 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
72 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Station

4/8/2015

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20150301 to 20150331

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

Emergency Calls:

21:02:5921:02:4220:53:3720:52:0520:52:0003/01/2015 NORTH RD  LOX21  0:11:07 0:09:05 0:01:32 0:00:30F15033581

22:03:4921:29:1821:21:5821:21:1121:21:0103/01/2015 NORTH RD  LOX21  0:08:42 0:07:20 0:00:47 0:00:35F15033591

02:26:0100:51:1900:43:5400:42:1800:42:1103/03/2015TANGERINE DR/D RD    LOX21  0:09:33 0:07:25 0:01:36 0:00:32F15034236

19:07:4818:59:2318:54:2318:53:5318:53:5603/05/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:05:55 0:05:00 0:00:30 0:00:25F15035778

10:36:0709:28:2409:23:5309:23:0609:22:5703/08/2015 STATE ROAD 80   LOX20  0:05:52 0:04:31 0:00:47 0:00:34F15037099

19:40:2518:53:0818:47:4218:47:0018:46:4418:46:0703/08/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:07:01 0:05:26 0:00:42 0:00:53F15037347

01:23:3200:34:1100:23:1400:22:3100:22:2700:21:2403/09/2015 G RD W LOX21  0:12:47 0:10:57 0:00:43 0:01:07F15037471

09:51:2609:27:3609:23:4809:22:3709:22:1709:21:5903/09/2015 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:05:37 0:03:48 0:01:11 0:00:38F15037612

18:22:1118:08:1718:02:5818:02:3218:02:2418:01:3003/10/2015 CASEY RD  LOX21  0:06:47 0:05:19 0:00:26 0:01:02F15038410

22:01:5421:38:2221:35:5621:34:5721:34:5303/10/2015OKEECHOBEE BLVD/E RD    LOX21  0:03:54 0:02:26 0:00:59 0:00:29F15038507

23:55:4523:26:4323:20:3223:20:1523:19:5423:19:2603/11/2015 CASEY RD  LOX21  0:07:17 0:06:11 0:00:17 0:00:49F15039053

10:15:3009:56:1409:52:2709:52:0509:51:5903/13/2015 B RD  LOX21  0:04:40 0:03:47 0:00:22 0:00:31F15039710

10:59:3610:09:2710:04:0610:03:3010:03:2510:02:5703/14/2015 F RD  LOX21  0:06:30 0:05:21 0:00:36 0:00:33F15040261

12:14:3911:45:2311:42:0711:41:2011:40:5411:40:1103/14/2015BINKS FOREST DR/FLYING COW RANCH RD    20  0:05:12 0:03:16 0:00:47 0:01:09F15040306

14:30:4014:02:0913:58:4313:57:4013:57:3403/14/2015 STATE ROAD 80   LOX20  0:05:00 0:03:26 0:01:03 0:00:31F15040375

23:57:2323:16:5523:12:2023:11:1423:11:0823:10:5103/14/2015 BRYAN RD  LOX21  0:06:04 0:04:35 0:01:06 0:00:23F15040617

19:29:2018:50:5418:46:2118:45:4718:45:3918:45:1503/16/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  PBC21  0:05:39 0:04:33 0:00:34 0:00:32F15041683

21:04:0320:13:0420:04:1420:03:4220:03:3603/16/2015 40TH ST N LOX26  0:09:53 0:08:50 0:00:32 0:00:31F15041714

14:06:0113:37:1013:32:3313:31:4813:31:3503/17/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  PBC21  0:06:00 0:04:37 0:00:45 0:00:38F15042067

19:29:1216:08:0616:02:3616:00:2416:00:1503/18/2015 B RD  LOX21  0:08:16 0:05:30 0:02:12 0:00:34F15042707

11:40:2610:51:3010:36:4910:36:0310:35:5303/19/2015 F RD  LOX21  0:16:02 0:14:41 0:00:46 0:00:35F15043068

23:56:2822:23:3722:15:2822:14:2922:14:2422:14:0703/20/2015 C RD  LOX21  0:09:30 0:08:09 0:00:59 0:00:22F15043915

05:50:5205:23:0105:18:2105:16:3805:16:3303/22/2015 22ND RD N LOX21  0:06:53 0:04:40 0:01:43 0:00:30F15044562

09:43:0709:07:3109:04:2309:03:1509:03:0609:02:3303/22/2015 B RD  LOX21  0:04:58 0:03:08 0:01:08 0:00:42F15044612

16:10:5015:42:4515:34:4315:33:5415:33:4503/23/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:09:25 0:08:02 0:00:49 0:00:34F15045370

13:18:4713:16:2213:08:5913:08:5213:06:5813:06:4203/24/2015 25TH PL N LOX21  0:09:40 0:07:23 0:00:07 0:02:10F15045833

19:29:3919:27:5719:19:3419:18:5919:18:5103/28/2015 147TH AVE N LOX21  0:09:31 0:08:23 0:00:35 0:00:33F15048347

20:59:1920:41:2520:37:3720:37:0320:36:5503/28/2015 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:04:55 0:03:48 0:00:34 0:00:33F15048383

15:25:5314:36:4214:35:0914:34:2914:34:2314:34:0603/29/2015 24TH CT N LOX21  0:02:36 0:01:33 0:00:40 0:00:23F15048730

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 1 of 2

 
73 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Station

4/8/2015

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20150301 to 20150331

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

09:31:4209:15:3909:11:1109:10:1109:10:0003/30/2015 D RD  LOX21  0:06:04 0:04:28 0:01:00 0:00:36F15049091

21:50:4421:16:0321:08:0921:06:3621:06:2903/31/2015 6TH CT N LOX21  0:09:59 0:07:54 0:01:33 0:00:32F15050014

Average Response Times:  0:00:39  0:00:53  0:05:55  0:07:27

Non Emergency Calls:

11:42:4111:37:4811:29:5311:29:1711:29:0603/10/2015E CITRUS DR  LOX21  0:09:07 0:07:55 0:00:36 0:00:36F15038212

18:47:5918:25:5118:19:2018:17:3818:17:2218:16:2103/19/2015 B RD  LOX21  0:09:30 0:06:31 0:01:42 0:01:17F15043300

19:12:0518:58:5118:53:0918:52:0518:51:2503/23/2015 C RD  LOX21  0:07:51 0:05:42 0:01:04 0:01:05F15045464

18:59:2817:56:3217:45:3017:43:4617:43:2403/27/2015 D RD  LOX21  0:13:33 0:11:02 0:01:44 0:00:47F15047706

Corrupt Data:

Empty Time Fields09:23:1209:22:5703/08/2015SOUTHERN BLVD/FLYING COW RANCH RD    PBC20F15037100

 36Total number of Events:

*Represents call received to arrival.  If there is no received time, the County annual average call received to call entered time is used.

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 2 of 2

 
74 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Coonsideration

I

OLD

n of forfeitu
Coun

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a. 

D BUSINESS

ure provisio
ncil Membe

 

ns to remov
er 

ve a Town 

 
75 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

{00068107.1 1574‐0702400 }   

 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.c. 

MEETING DATE: 4/7/2015 
      
PREPARED BY: Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney  

SUBJECT: Question of Forfeiture of Office, Councilman Liang  
 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town has received information relating to a question of forfeiture as
to Councilman Liang pursuant to Section 3(4), entitled “VACANCIES IN OFFICE;
FORFEITURE; SUSPENSION; FILLING OF VACANCIES.”   

 
Problem Solution:  Section 3(4) of the Town Charter provides that the Town Council “shall
hear all questions relating to forfeiture of a council member,” and that is the “sole judge of the 
qualification of its members.”  (emphasis added).  As a result, the Charter requires the Town 
Council to hear the questions raised in the attached correspondence.  

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

Section 3(4) of the Town Charter, states, in pertinent part: 

“The council shall be the sole judge of the qualifications of its members and shall hear all questions 
relating to forfeiture of a council member.”   

“The council member whose qualifications are in question or who is otherwise subject to forfeiture of his
or her office shall not vote on any such matters.”   

“The council member in question shall be entitled to a public hearing on request regarding an alleged
forfeiture of office.  If a public hearing is requested notice thereof shall be published in one or more
newspapers of general circulation in the town at least 1 week in advance of the hearing.” 

 

  
  
 
 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
    
Town Attorney Memorandum 2015-002 

 
76 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

{00068107.1 1574‐0702400 }   

Section 3(4), Town Charter 
March 16, 2015, email from Dennis Lipp 
March 13, 2015, correspondence from Richard A. Jarolem, Esquire, and attachments thereto 
March 20, 2015, correspondence from John R. Whittles, Esquire 
 
  
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
 N/A 
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION
  

The initial step for the Town Council in hearing the question is to determine whether the questions raised
fall within the grounds for forfeiture.  Should the Town Council determine that the questions would not fall
within the forfeiture provisions of the Charter, no further action by the Town Council would be warranted.
If the Council finds that the questions fall within the grounds in the Charter, then it should schedule the 
matter for consideration at a future meeting in order to provide Council member Liang an opportunity to
request a public hearing should he chose to do so. 

 

 
77 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



{00068059.1 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 
  

MEMORANDUM NO. 2015-002 
 
TO:  Mayor David Browning 
  Members of the Town Council 
 
CC:  William Underwood, Town Manager  
  Janet Whipple, Town Clerk 
 
FROM:  Michael D. Cirullo, Office of the Town Attorney  MDC 
   
DATE:  April 7, 2015 
 
RE: Town of Loxahatchee Groves / Question of Forfeiture 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Town has received information relating to a question of forfeiture as to Councilman Liang pursuant 
to Section 3(4), entitled “VACANCIES IN OFFICE; FORFEITURE; SUSPENSION; FILLING OF 
VACANCIES.”  The several correspondences are attached hereto.   
 
Section 3(4) of the Town Charter states, in pertinent part:   
 
“The council shall be the sole judge of the qualifications of its members and shall hear all questions 
relating to forfeiture of a council member.”   
 
“The council member whose qualifications are in question or who is otherwise subject to forfeiture of his 
or her office shall not vote on any such matters.”   
 
“The council member in question shall be entitled to a public hearing on request regarding an alleged 
forfeiture of office.  If a public hearing is requested notice thereof shall be published in one or more 
newspapers of general circulation in the town at least 1 week in advance of the hearing.” 
 
This provision of the Charter uniquely and expressly provides that the Town Council “shall hear all 
questions relating to forfeiture of a council member,” and that is the “sole judge of the qualification of its 
members.”  (emphasis added).  As a result, the Charter requires the Town Council to hear the questions 
raised in the attached correspondence.   
 
The initial step for the Town Council in hearing the question is to determine whether the questions raised 
fall within the grounds for forfeiture.  Should the Town Council determine that the questions would not 
fall within the forfeiture provisions of the Charter, no further action by the Town Council would be 
warranted.   If the Council finds that the questions fall within the grounds in the Charter, then it should 
schedule the matter for consideration at a future meeting in order to provide Council member Liang an 
opportunity to request a public hearing should he chose to do so. 
   
Attachments: 

 
78 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



{00068059.1 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 
  

MEMORANDUM NO. 2015-002 
 
TO:  Mayor David Browning 
  Members of the Town Council 
 
CC:  William Underwood, Town Manager  
  Janet Whipple, Town Clerk 
 
FROM:  Michael D. Cirullo, Office of the Town Attorney  MDC 
   
DATE:  April 7, 2015 
 
RE: Town of Loxahatchee Groves / Question of Forfeiture 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Town has received information relating to a question of forfeiture as to Councilman Liang pursuant 
to Section 3(4), entitled “VACANCIES IN OFFICE; FORFEITURE; SUSPENSION; FILLING OF 
VACANCIES.”  The several correspondences are attached hereto.   
 
Section 3(4) of the Town Charter states, in pertinent part:   
 
“The council shall be the sole judge of the qualifications of its members and shall hear all questions 
relating to forfeiture of a council member.”   
 
“The council member whose qualifications are in question or who is otherwise subject to forfeiture of his 
or her office shall not vote on any such matters.”   
 
“The council member in question shall be entitled to a public hearing on request regarding an alleged 
forfeiture of office.  If a public hearing is requested notice thereof shall be published in one or more 
newspapers of general circulation in the town at least 1 week in advance of the hearing.” 
 
This provision of the Charter uniquely and expressly provides that the Town Council “shall hear all 
questions relating to forfeiture of a council member,” and that is the “sole judge of the qualification of its 
members.”  (emphasis added).  As a result, the Charter requires the Town Council to hear the questions 
raised in the attached correspondence.   
 
The initial step for the Town Council in hearing the question is to determine whether the questions raised 
fall within the grounds for forfeiture.  Should the Town Council determine that the questions would not 
fall within the forfeiture provisions of the Charter, no further action by the Town Council would be 
warranted.   If the Council finds that the questions fall within the grounds in the Charter, then it should 
schedule the matter for consideration at a future meeting in order to provide Council member Liang an 
opportunity to request a public hearing should he chose to do so. 
   
Attachments: 

105 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
79 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



106 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
80 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



107 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
81 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



108 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
82 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



109 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
83 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



110 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
84 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



111 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
85 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



112 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
86 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



113 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
87 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



114 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
88 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



115 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
89 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



116 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
90 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



117 of 119  TC Agenda Packet 04/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
91 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
April 7, 2

 
Sent by E
 
Mike Cir
Goren Ch
3099 Eas
Ft. Laude
 
Re: C
 
Dear Mr.
 

 I 
eligibility
the Coun

 I
March 2
response 
cc’d or 
“transpar

 
  It
Charter’s
the Cour
court sta
interpret 
addition,
language
not (and 

If
written a
cites to n

 

2015 

Email Tran

rullo, Jr. 
herof Doody
st Commerci
erdale, Flori

Canvasing Bo

. Cirullo, 

am writing
y to serve on

ncil for their 

I have once 
0, 2015. I a
today as I w
otherwise i

rency” of the

t is a disinge
s language m
rts. In the ca
ated that wh

See also M
 case law ho

e. With all du
cannot be) r

f he had the
 week after m

nothing.  Thi

nsmission &

y & Ezrol, P
ial Blvd, Sui
da 33308 

oard of Loxa

g this letter 
n the Counc
determinatio

again revie
apologize fo
was not cc’d
informed of
e process.  T

enuous argum
must be read
ase of Hott 
here the lang
odder v Am
olds that the 
ue respect to

retroactive”, 

e case law, i
my original 
s should be t

 Facsimile

.A. 
ite 200 

ahatchee Gro

in connect
il. I am aski
on tonight. 

ewed the Ch
or my late re
d on the cor
f the respon

This is exactl

I.

ment to state
d in its clear
Interiors,Inc
guage of a 

merican Natio
legislature i

o Mr. Liang
is simply a w

it is my opin
letter, giving
telling in an

oves 

tion with th
ing this lette

harter and t
esponse, how
rrespondence
nse’s existe
ly what my c

THE CHA

e that the Ch
r and unamb
c. v Fostock
statute is c

onal Life In
is presumed 
, his stateme
wish and no

nion that he
g him ample
d of itself.   

he Council’s
er to be prov

the letter se
wever I firs
e.  The fact 
ence, I beli
client has be

ARTER 

harter may n
biguous term
k, 721 So.2d
lear and un
surance Co.
to know wh

ent that “the
ot backed up 

e would hav
e time to find
 

Richard
RJarolem@t

s determinat
vided as supp

nt on Mr. L
st became aw
that neither

ieve speaks 
en fighting a

not be appli
ms. This is n
d 1236 (Fla
nambiguous, 
, 688 So.2d 

hat it is doin
e Charter’s fo

by substanti

ve provided 
d law suppor

d A. Jarolem
traublieberm

tion of Mr.
plemental m

Liang’s beh
ware of Mr
r, I or my cl

volumes a
against. 

ed retroactiv
not me sayin
. 4th DCA 1
the courts 
330 (Fla. 1

ng with regar
forfeiture pro
ive law.  

it. His respo
rting his pos

, Esquire 
man.com 

. Liang’s 
material to 

alf dated 
. Liang’s 
ient, was 

as to the 

vely. The 
ng it. It is 
1998) the 

may not 
997).  In 
rds to the 
ovision is 

onse was 
sition, yet 

 
92 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 In looking at the Charter language, the Charter does not place any time restriction on the 
issue. Section 3(4)(b)(2) of the Charter does not provide that the felony must be committed during 
the term of office. It simply says the councilmember “shall forfeit his or her office” if the 
councilperson “Is convicted of a felony or enters a pleas of nolo contender to a crime punishable as a 
felony.” 

 The clear and unambiguous language of the Charter does not place any time restriction on 
the entry of the plea and therefore, as a matter of law one cannot be placed on it now. This is simply 
beyond the powers of the Council. 

As to Mr. Liang’s argument that if it were not required to be interpreted as “present tense”, 
all council members would forfeit their office for missing three consecutive council meetings; we 
agree on something. This is nonsense. Attendance of citizens is not taken at council meetings. Only 
the attendance of Councilpersons is documented. Therefore, there is no record and if someone were 
to be removed for this “offense”, the claim could not be substantiated and their due process rights 
would be violated.  

II. THE FELONY AND THE EXCUSES 
  Mr. Liang goes through extensive efforts to explain away his actions as something other 

than they are.  However, the facts are pretty straightforward: 

1. At the time of the plea, the plea was for a felony.  
2. Mr. Liang entered a plea of nolo contendre or “no contest” to that felony. 
That is the only inquiry necessary for this Council. The rest is hyperbole. If we want to 

indulge the specific arguments, then I will do so: 

1. A Third Degree Felony is the lowest possible felony. The Charter does not exclude third 
degree felonies from forfeiture. If it intended to do so, it would have so stated. In 
addition, the Charter does not even require a conviction; it only requires a plea of nolo 
contendre. All of the elements are still met. 
 

2. It is a non-intent infraction. The Charter does not exclude non-intent felonies. If it 
intended to do so, it would have so stated. Another non-intent crime is sex with a minor. 
Using the same argument, if a council person pled nolo contendre to that crime, we 
should discount that as well. It is clear that any narrative which excuses intent is really 
unpersuasive; 

 
3. The crime was subsequently downgraded. Once again, at the time of the plea, it was a 

felony. If the Charter desired to exclude crimes which have been downgraded after the 
plea, it would have so stated. Mr. Liang does not dispute that the plea was to a felony, he 
just opines as to “harshness” of the prior law. In another exaggeration of the point, people 
convicted of violating the Volsted Act (“Prohibition”) were not simply set free when 

 
93 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Prohibition was repealed. They were convicted and suffered the consequences of their 
actions even after the law was repealed. All that counts is the law at the time of the 
offense, unless specifically mandated by the legislature.  
 

III. IT IS NO COINCIDENCE THAT MR. LIANG’S 2001 NOLO CONTENDRE 
PLEA IS BEING BROUGHT UP NOW 

Mr. Liang is correct in his assertion it is no coincidence that this issue is being brought up 
now. The reason is simple. No one looked this closely at Mr. Liang until now. Until this election, 
there has never been the probability of the commission of felonies in connection with an election.  

In re-hashing the facts known about this election, on or about March 5, 2015, Mr. Ford made 
allegations that he received an absentee ballot that he did not request. That allegation was made to 
the Supervisor of Elections. Those allegations were reported on by the Town Crier, the Palm Beach 
Post, and the local TV networks just prior to the March 10, 2015 election. Unless I am mistaken in 
what I viewed; in the TV interviews, Mr. Laing admitted that his mother and campaign treasurer 
improperly requested absentee ballots. That act is a felony for each absentee ballot improperly 
requested, and potentially a first degree felony for identity theft.   

 Is it really a surprise that after these facts came to light, that the citizens had a desire to look 
deeper? And when they did, they found Mr. Liang’s plea to a felony. Instead of thanking the 
citizens, they are being blamed by him. The bigger question is why was this not disclosed prior by 
Mr. Liang; instead of  why wasn’t it discovered until now? 

As to Mr. Liang’s assertion that there has been no allegation about any improper conduct in 
the election, that has never been the case. From Mr. Ford’s initial complaint until today, it has been 
asserted over and over that the election was tainted. In particular, at the March 17, 2015 certification 
of the result, in which Mr. Whittles  and I were both present, the following occurred: 

1. Councilperson Goltzené raised issues about the propriety of the election; 
2. The Mayor acknowledged that “this is not over” referring to the criminal investigation by 

the State Attorney’s Office and FDLE.  
3. Mr. Whittles spoke at the podium and encouraged people to reserve judgment until the 

investigation was over; 
4. Numerous citizens expressed their opinions on the record alleging illegalities and/or 

improprieties; 
Prior to the March 17, 2015 council meeting it was publically known and reported that: 

1.  Mr. Ford made his allegations;  
2. The Supervisor of Elections turned the matter over to Law enforcement;  
3. The State Attorney’s office was investigating; 
4. FDLE was involved in the investigation; 

 
94 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



5.  Mr. Liang (on TV) acknowledged that his mother procured absentee ballots without the 
consent of the voter. 

After the March 17, 2015 Council meeting: 

1. Councilperson Goltzené raised additional objections to the certification at the Audit at the 
SOE; 

2. It was discovered that Mr. Rockett contributed to the Liang Campaign despite being on 
the canvassing board; 

3. It was discovered that Mr. Rockett endorsed and campaigned for Mr. Liang despite being 
on the canvassing board; 

4. That Mr. Rockett failed to file any report or disclose the allegations of Mr. Ford despite 
being present when they were made; 

5. That Mr. Rockett collected and delivered absentee ballots to the SOE, despite being on 
the canvassing board. 

6. And Mr. Harris filed his lawsuit contesting the election. 
 Finally, as Mr. Rockett campaigned for Mr. Liang, endorsed Mr. Liang, gave money to Mr. 
Liang’s campaign; I would highly recommend that he abstain from voting on this issue. 

IV. CONCLUSION 
 With all of the above being said, the issue remains simple. The Charter has a requirement. 
Mr. Liang violated the Charter’s requirement, and the Council is required to remove him based upon 
his violation. Everything else is just noise.  

 

   Sincerely 

 
  

  Richard A. Jarolem 

 

cc. client 

John Wittles, Esq.  

 

 
95 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
96 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.a. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Engage Town Engineer – B Road Improvements 

 
97 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.a.  

MEETING DATE: 04/21/2015 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  B Road OGEM Improvement  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: The Town Council requires the Town’s engineer to prepare all work 
necessary pursuant to Resolution No. 2015-08 (B Road Agreement) for the ultimate construction 
and approval of the improvements on B Road based on the four-party agreement approved by the 
Town Council at its February 17, 2015, Town Council meeting.  
 

Problem Solution:  Engage the Town’s engineer to undertake and perform all activities necessary 
to implement the B Road improvements as envisioned through the B Road Agreement, the 
Town’s portion of the B Road improvements and Resolution No. 2015-08.   
 

At the February 17, 2015, meeting of the Town Council, the Council unanimously approved 
Resolution 2015-08 that provides for the funding and construction of B Road improvements from 
Southern Boulevard north to Okeechobee Boulevard.  The Town’s portion of the project is the 
development of the OGEM portion of the road and the Town can request additional funding for 
the project within a 24 month time frame.  Further, the agreement specified that three parties in 
the agreement, specifically, Loxahatchee Equestrian Partners and Solar Sportsystems, Inc., 
Atlantic Land Investments, LLC, And Palm Beach State College, would be sole responsible for 
funding the improvements on B Road within the time limit specified.   
 
The improvements are basically in two pieces: 1. Paved portion from Southern Boulevard north to 
the end of the PBSC property, and 2. OGEM portion from the PBSC to Okeechobee Boulevard.  
The three parties have escrowed $2.34 million for the improvements. 
 
In January, 2015, the Town’s Attorney submitted a letter approved by the Town Council 
requesting the LGWCD provide the necessary control of B Road to the Town in order that the 
Town can fulfill its obligation under the B Road Agreement. 

 

2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

 On April 13, 2015, the LGWCD Board of Supervisors approved a motion to quit claim the B Road to the 
Town upon the satisfactorily provide a survey and legal description of B Road.  Although this was 
approved, there remain a few more actions LGWCD and Town will need to take before the transfer is 
finalized. The steps as outlined by the district attorney are: 

1. The Maintenance Maps need to be prepared and recorded.  The Quit Claim Deed to the Town 
can then be prepared.    

2. The Town needs to approve a Resolution Accepting the Quit Claim Deed from the District for B 
Road.   

 
98 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



3. The District would then need to authorize execution of the Quit Claim Deed from the District to 
the Town for B Road in accordance with the District's Special Acts.  

4. The District would then execute the Quit Claim Deed.  The Quit Claim Deed would be recorded 
along with the Resolution from the Town of Loxahatchee Groves.    

Upon completion of the above items, the Town’s engineer, Keshavarz & Associates, will provide the 
following scope of services: 

1. Geotechnical Engineering Services 
2. Land Surveying Services 
3. Roadway Design Services 
4. Permitting Services 
5. Bid Phase Services 
6. Construction Phase Services 
7. General Consulting Services 

The fee as outlined in the their letter dated April 3, 2015, project no. 14-1057 will be:

 
 

 

3.  ATTACHMENTS  
 

 
Project No. 14-1057 – Keshavarz & Associates project engagement 
Resolution No. 2015-08 – B Road Agreement 
Exhibit B of Agreement 

 

4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 

 
The Town will use funds provided through the B Road Agreement provided by the other three 
parties to the agreement.      

  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
 A motion instructing staff and Keshavarz & Associates to commence the B Road improvement.    

 
99 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
100 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
101 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
102 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
103 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
104 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
105 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
106 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
107 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
108 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
109 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
110 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
111 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
112 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
113 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
114 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
115 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 11. a. 

COUNCIL REPORTS – Vice Mayor Jarriel 

 
iii. Resolution 2014-08 – Setting Town Council Meetings  

Day, Time, Place  

 
118 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
116 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
117 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 11.b. 

Town Council Reports – Jim Rockett 

i. Resolution 2013-03A – Public Comments at all 
Committee and Board Meetings. 

ii. Discussion and recommendations to Solid Waste 
Monitoring Contract. 

 
119 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
120 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
121 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
122 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
123 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
124 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
125 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
126 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
127 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
128 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
129 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
130 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
131 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
132 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
133 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
134 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
135 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
136 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
137 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
138 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
139 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
140 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
141 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
142 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
143 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
144 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
145 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
146 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
147 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
148 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
149 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
150 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
151 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
152 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
153 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
154 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
155 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
156 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
157 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
158 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
159 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
160 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
161 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
162 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
163 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
164 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
165 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
166 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
167 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
168 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
169 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
170 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
171 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
172 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
173 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
174 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
175 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
176 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
177 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
178 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
179 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
180 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
181 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
182 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
183 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
184 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015



 
185 of 185 TC Agenda Packet 05/05/2015


	1.c. Agenda
	2.a. Invoices from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A.
	2.b. Minutes - March 3, 2015
	2.c. Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School Donation
	5.a. Financial Report - March 2015
	7.a. Ordinance 2015-02 First Reading - Appointment of Planning and Zoning Board Members
	7.b. Ordinance 2015-03 First Reading - Phibiting Disposal of Waste Materials
	8.a. Town Manager Reports - Activities Update
	8.b. PBSO Monthly Report - March 2015
	8.c. Fire Rescue Monthly Report - March 2015
	9.a.  Question of Forfeiture of Office, Councilman Liang
	10.a. Engagement of Town's Engineer - Implement the B Road Improvements 
	11.a.iii. Discussion Relative to Resolution 2014-08 Confirming Day, Time, and Place of Town Council Meetings
	11.b.i. Public Comments at all Committee and Board Meetins - Resolution No. 2013-03A
	11.b.ii  Discussion and Recommendation to Solid Waste Monitoring Contract



